	Town of Stoughton

	

	


BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 
Andrew M. Tibbs, Chair♦ Steven Snyder, Vice Chair♦ Richard Parolin♦ Ellen Epro ♦ Michael Varner 
The Stoughton Board of Health held this meeting on Thursday March 13, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. In accordance with the Governor’s order allowing public bodies to hold open meetings in person, remotely or in a hybrid fashion extended to March 31, 2025, the meeting was conducted both in person at Town Hall, 10 Pearl Street, Stoughton, MA 02072, 3rd floor Yaitanes conference room– and by remote participation via Google Meets. 
Members present:

Mr. Andrew Tibbs, Chairman 
Mr. Steven Snyder, Vice Chair 



Mr. Richard Parolin

Mrs. Ellen Epro – attended virtually (audio issues)


Member Absent: Mr. Michael Varner due to work commitment
Also, Present:

Lawrence Perry, Town Sanitarian (virtually), Sean Leahy Asst. Town Sanitarian
All virtually: Reilly Ellis, Tobacco Collaborative Coordinator, Atty. Brian Winner, Town Counsel, Atty. Richard Nylen for 1156 Park Street. 
Mr. Matt Hughes, WIN Waste Director of Environmental Compliance
Chair Tibbs called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m., stating it is being conducted both in person at Town Hall and virtually via Google meets as posted. 
Mr. Tibbs read the first item on the agenda;
I. Metro South-West Tobacco Collaborative
Reilly Ellis, the new Regional Tobacco Coordinator spoke first and gave a summary of previous experience. Some present duties involve visiting licensed tobacco retailers to perform inspections. 

Underage buyers will be recruited to perform sting operations to see if retailers will sell to them. They will inform the Board of any violations.
Mr. Tibbs welcomed Reilly Ellis on board and said the Board is thankful for any suggestions 

Mr. Snyder asked whether tobacco permit holders are allowed to advertise tobacco products with signage outside the business. He thought this was not allowed. Reilly Ellis will look into this.
Mr. Leahy asked the Board to vote on Reilly Ellis’ appointment.

Mr. Parolin made a motion to appoint Reilly Ellis’ as the Southwest Regional Tobacco Coordinator for Stoughton. Mr. Snyder seconded.
On the vote: 

Mr. Parolin – yes 
Mr. Snyder – yes

Mr. Tibbs – yes

Motion passed 3-0

II. A. 1305 Washington Street – Septic Tight Tank install / Sewer extension project / update

Mr. Tibbs invited Eric Dias, from Strong Point Engineering to give an update. Mr. Dias said he is here representing Double C Realty and the excavator is on site today digging the hole.  He added, they are dewatering and once the hole is dry, stone will be brought in and the tank will go in early next week. He said they will need an extension, but by the next Board meeting, it should complete it, barring unforeseen circumstances.
Mr. Parolin asked whether the gas lines need to be moved, as was mentioned at a previous meeting.

Mr. Dias explained by going with a smaller tank than originally planned, thankfully it was not necessary to move the gas lines. Mr. Parolin commented this project was supposed to be completed by December 2024. Mr. Dias explained there were delays due to the illness of the contractor and winter conditions.

Mr. Parolin made a motion to extend this project to the next meeting. Mr. Snyder seconded.

On the vote:  
Mr. Parolin – yes 
Mr. Snyder – yes

Mr. Tibbs – yes,
Motion passed 3-0

Mr. Tibbs asked for an update on the sewer connection plans. Mr. Dias said he does not have a lot to report, but they are working their way through design concepts in order to make it as cost effective as possible. He said it is privately funded and they are talking about several million dollars at this point, so they are trying to make that work. Mr. Dias said they will be regrouping with the town on options and will hopefully move forward with whatever plan is selected. 
B. 100 Page Street – C& D Facility
Mr. Matt Hughes, manager of WIN Waste Innovations who operates the C & D facility at 100 Page Street  recalled from the previous meeting he and the Board discussed his request to include up to 150 tons of MSW to the existing waste volume permitted into the facility. They also discussed updating the site assignment. He said he was not expecting a decision tonight, but was wondering if the Board could make a decision on adding the 150 tons of MSW to the existing permitted volume and then have a public hearing later in order to discuss updating the site assignment. 
Mr. Hughes said he already reached out to (DEP) Department of Environmental Protection and they told him to speak to and be cleared by the BOH first.
Mr. Brian Winner, Town Counsel addressed the Board and offered to meet with WIN Waste offline, with the Boards permission to discuss technical details.   
Mr. Hughes clarified the acronyms C&D (construction and demolition) debris and MSW (municipal solid waste). He explained the 150-ton increase would not significantly influence truck traffic, as it would

primarily involve replacing C&D waste with MSW waste, potentially resulting in a similar overall truck volume 
Mr. Parolin expressed concern about the existing facility compliance and suggested a comprehensive review of the site assignment. He mentioned being on the Board when the original site assignment was created over 20 years ago. He said they have not lived up to what was agreed on. 

Mr. Tibbs said he is in agreement with updating the site assignment in a more comprehensive way and that is why it is important to seek outside technical expertise. 
The Board is in favor of allowing town counsel to facilitate further discussions between town counsel and WIN Waste to iron out some issues and procedural details.
III. Sanitarian Update

A. 1156 Park Street, Kelley’s Manufactured Home – Septic Project
Attorney Brian Winner and Attorney Richard Nylen provided updates on the septic project. They reported progress in communication with Zenith Consulting Engineers and the applicant’s team, outlining the next steps and coordination of services. They also noted that the Conservation Commission approval was pending and a certification from Infiltrator (formerly Presby) would be provided early next week

Atty. Nylen requested a discussion regarding the construction  permit reinstatement at the next board meeting, noting his unavailability on April 10th, but said he would be available on the 17th.  

Mr. Tibbs thanked Atty. Nylen and said the Board would not be able to make any promises, but they will consider Atty. Nylen’s availability when scheduling the next meeting. 
The Board discussed the possibility of having the peer-review engineer attend the next meeting to address Mr. Parolin’s concerns about the review process.
Mrs. Epro wanted to let the Board know she has been listening to the meeting virtually.
She had trouble logging in by telephone and was able to log in on via her computer. 

B. 464 Canton Street – Housing / failed residential septic / legal issues  occupant/owner

Mr. Leahy said he was out at this site today for an inspection and the septic system is going in. The tanks are going in next, now that the field has been constructed, so things are moving along. 
C. End of Pandemic related virtual/hybrid public meeting formats, March 31, 2025

Chairman Tibbs said it is not clear at this time whether this policy, which started during Covid, will be extended. If it is not extended, the Board will have meet in person. He said allowing hybrid meetings provides an opportunity for more people to attend meetings that otherwise might not be able to. Mr. Tibbs said they are considering making it permanent. He commented that the last time it was literally extended the day before it was due to expire. 
IV. Correspondence

A. 1165 Park Street – Chateau Restaurant – sewer connection mail update Feb. 24.2025
Mr. Tibbs said we received information regarding the status of this project and their connection seems to be proceeding well. Mr. Tibbs read from the email the Board received from the engineer stating the septic tanks and grease traps will remain active until such time the restaurant makes a connection to the future Phase II sewer main. He asked for clarification. Mr. Perry responded now they are pumping all the sewerage across the street and down the easement. Once Phase II is complete, the wastewater will run by gravity into the sewer main. They will no longer need the pump chamber. He added they would still need a grease tank, even with the sewer connection; there will still be a need for grease and solids to be pumped. 
B. Open Meeting Minutes from February 13, 2025
Mr. Perry advised of a technical correction that needed to be fixed. 

Mr. Parolin made a motion to approve the minutes with any corrections and deletions. Mr. Snyder seconded. 
On the vote:

Mr. Parolin – yes
Mrs. Epro – yes

Mr. Snyder – yes 

Mr. Tibbs – yes

Motion passed 4-0

Mr. Parolin made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Snyder seconded.
On the vote:

Mr. Parolin – yes
Mrs. Epro – yes

Mr. Varner – yes
Mr. Snyder – yes 

Mr. Tibbs – yes

Motion passed 4-0

Meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m.
DOCUMENTS USED DURING MEETING
1. Email to Sean Leahy from Sigalle Reis, Brookline Public Health and Human Services announcing Reilly Ellis’ acceptance of the Regional Tobacco Collaborative Coordinator position. 1 pg.
2. Email to Lawrence Perry from Matt Hughes, Director of Environmental Compliance, WIN Waste 
3. Email to Lawrence Perry, cc’d to Craig Horsfall, James Conlon, Sean Leahy providing an update to the Chateau Restaurant sewer connection project. 1 pg.

4. Open Session minutes of February 13, 2025 5pgs. 
Open session minutes of February 13, 2025 approved at this meeting.
1
Board of Health Open Session Minutes – March 13, 2025

